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THE ESTABLISHMENT OF EDUCATION
IN NEW YORK STATE

BY
DIEDRICH WILLERS

The Town of Varick has a hist-
oric record of its schools, kept
by Diedrich Willers. The record
was started in 1855, when Willers
was town superintendent of schools.
He was appointed superintendent
in Jan. 1851 when he was 17 years
of age. As follows is his account
written in 1855 as an introduction
to the schoal record.

Generally, the establishment of
education was probably the same in
most areas. One thing was different
for this area, the funding since
Seneca County was part of the Mil-
itary Tract and received some of
its monies through the sales of
the gospel and school lots. The
area that is now Varick had three
such lots within its confines. Mr.
Willers only mentions one The
other two probably were sold to
benefit the schoois in Romulus.
Each military township was supp-
osed tohave a total of six gospel
and school lots.

To continue in Mr. Willer's
words. Cut country must look for
its future prosperity and govern-
ment, to the children of cur Common
Schools. This is a truth univer-
sally acknowledged by alil the
friends of our Common Schools.

Education has for its great
object to make man happy. It is a
true saying, "From the family into
the school, from the school into
the church, and from the church
into heaven."

Education has for jts great Object,
to educate our children fur this
wqud, and for the world to come.
Like the bird of passage, we have
a2 double fatherland. The one is

callad earth, the other heaven.

The first object of our Conmon
Schocl System is, to teach our

childran how to become good statesmen.

And to educate them to become good
¢citizens has been the early endeavor
of th2 rfourters of cir stete.

£ rarncr of the
the

Geogrce Clinton,
State of fiayw York, ador2csad
tegisiature of this ftate, at

sessinn, after the adontion of the

Constitution, favorably on the subject

of educaticn and principally on the
revival and encouragement of semin-
aries, and in the same yeer, an

act was passed for the incorporation
of the Regents of the University.

In 1789 and 1796, an act was passed,

authorizing the Surveyor General to
set apart one lot in every townsip in
the Military Tract for the benefit
of tha gospel and of schools.

Ministers of the gecspel in the
several townships received support

fyrom the intzrast ¢f these lands. But,

sincz tne year 1820, the interest
of these lots, each consisting of
550 zcres are devcted solely to the

baneit of Common Schools. Tha township

of Romulus located a lot cof 550 acres

under this act.

In 1793 the Regents o7 the Univer-
sitv sncouraged sy the governor,
racormended to the L2gislature the
astablisament of schools in diverse
parts of tne state to educate the
children in the lowar branches
educations: for example, reading
of their mother tongue, writing ard
arithmetic as far as it becomes
necassary to the transactions of
life.

Bovernor George Clinton, in 1785,
in his messagce to the Legislature,
spoke not only favorably 6f the
endowment of academies in their
limited use (principally for the
children of rich parents, whilst a
large portion of the community was
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excluded from their use).

The establishment of Common
Schools was happily calculated
to heal this inconvenience, and
he therefore recommended the
subject to the early and decisive
attention of the Legislature.

Encouraged by this message, the
Legislature passed an act, becoming
a law on April 9, 1795, setting
aside for the term of five years,
the sum of 20,000 pounds or
$50,000 for the support of
schools in the different cities
and villages of the state, to
educate the children in the
English language, English grammar
arithmetic, mathematics and such
other branches of knowledge,
which are necessary and useful
to the completion of a good Eng-
lish education.

Already in 1798, —- 1,352 schools
were established in which 59,660
children were taught. The State
was then composed of 23 counties,
and 16 counties made their
report on Common Schools.

In 1799 the State Legislature
enacted a law to raise, by means
of four successive lotteries,
the sum of $100,000. 3f this sum,
$87,500 was to be paid in the
ireasury, for the encouragement of
Comimon Schools, and $12,500 was
appropriated by the Regents of
the University, in favor of
Academies.

In 18200, Governor Jday, in his
message to the Legisliature says,
"1 earnestly recommen® to your
attention and support our in-
stitutions for the education of
our youth. The importance of
Common Schools is best estimated
by the good effects of them, where
they most serve and are the best
regulated. "

In the same year, $50,000 were

again voted by the Legislature,

for Common Scheools, for Tive years,
and in 1801, the law on Lotteries
was renewed. In 1802 and 1803,
Goverror Clinton, in his message to
the Lecvistature, renzwed his encour-
agerents in favor of Common Schocis.

¢

the adminisiraiion of
Governoyr Lewis, ihe Lecislature on
April 2, 1805, passed an act that
the net proceeds of 500,000 acres of
the vacant and unappropriated lands
a7 the people of the State, should
be applied for the support of Common
Schools, the avails to be safely
invested until the interest should
amount to $50,000 and then the in=
terest to be distributed annually
amongst the different school districts
67 the stats. This act laid the
foundatica to the present Common
School Fund (1855}.

During

gefore the year 1810 no school
system was forma2d. This was done
according te the direction of Governory
Tompkins in 1810 , when five comm- i\‘
issioners were appointed to submit
a report for the covernment of schocls
which was done on Feb. 14, 1812,
and remained in force until 1838.
The school fund in 1810 was $151,115

The cz;.t21 ¢f the school fund now
rapidly increasad. In 1315 it was
3861.,457; in 1825 it asmaounted to
£1,238,33¢ 3 and ir '£35 it was
51,791,321, Jn 1847 it was $2.033,807
since which period .hcre has been
added annually, 51 as interest
Trom the United St

in 1851 the capital of the school
fund was 52,243,563.36; the capital
of the Unitad States Deposit Fund,
$2,750,003; addition to the capital
by the Constitution, $416,666.67.;
total school fund, $5,400,230.03.

The annual interest of this sum
is $324,000 of which sum $300,000,
is applied annually for the benefit
of common schools, including $55,000
for libraries.

O
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on March 26, 1849, the Legislat-
ure of this State passed a law in
favor of Frez Schools, which
passed Nov. 6, at ihe ballet box,
by a majority of 157,921,

Guided by remonstrating petit-
ions, the Lecislature ordered a
sacond balloting 2y the peonle,
i favor of Frez Schools or
opposition, in MNovember 1850.

The result was 25,038 majority in
favor of Free Suhoola. In 1851
legislature enacted a law to im-
puse an annual tax of $200,000,

on the 59 counties of the state,
which wunited with the above
$300,C00, Torms a yearly income of
$1,100,000 for the supportof free
schools.

The first adminsiration of
our school funds we find in our
original Book of the Town Super-
intendent of Common Scheols.
According te this statement the
officers, to whom the affairs of
common schools waere entrusted
acted under the title of Trustees
of the School and Gospel Fund.
Their first proceedings arz dated
in the year 1820 and the town was
then known by the name of Romulus.
The Trustezs of tue School and
Gosgel Fund in 1820 we Benjamin
Lemmon, Elijah Kinney, Jr. and
"=n3=ﬂ=n Sutioi. Tha Scihonl and
Gospel Fund amounted to $6362,05.

of Romulus reported
annually beforz three justices of
peace. In 1830, when the town of
Varick was organized, the $6363.06
was divided as follows; Town of
Romulus, $3521.13; Town of VArick,
$2841.93.

The trustees

In 1831. the trustees of the
Town .Fund of their account in-
vestigated py officers, called town
auditors, which arrangement ex-
ists to the present dav. (1855)

In 1845, the trustees of the
town fund paid the annual interest
on bonds and mortgages, for the

QUR CoMMCh SCHOOLS TO
Orange W. Wiiiincon, superintendent
of Common Scheolz. Sincs that time
we find the office of Town Superin-
tendent of Comnnn Schecls, whose
duty it is t ribute amcng

tha schoot districts, beicnging to
tha town , annua.iv
Aeat o7 taa S
funds. Sinc
town surerinlindent
following 391:AL.en
town superincendints:
Wilkinscn, Deniel Leisenring,
Burroughs Philips,

BENEFIT OF

¥

*he dapportion-
oy the

lezal

Henry Swan, G.R.
Andrews end Diedrich Willers, since
Jan. l&, [851.

Uuring the 1855-56 school year,
Varick had 16 school districts, numb-
ered from one to 15. There was no
schoel Numoer 13, but there were two
Me. 9 and li, which were shared with
Romulus; slso 12. School district
14 and 13 were snarec with Fayette.
Thera were 700 children in all the
school dlst"xcbs that year.

Trustees in the various school
district that year were: No. 1 -
Abrancm Lergn, lilliam Harris, J.
Lavtenzchlager; loc. 2 - Jesse Abbott,
Jdoshn Stghl, Jdehn G, Biain:; Ng. 3 -

E. Hscker, Joan Em-iclk, J.P. Ritter;
Ne. & Jacob G. G:imbee, Solemen
Acker, Abranam N. Vian Tynq
Thowas S:<u3le, Joha Y. T
Josenrh Gzrnee; lo. & - hn Litzen-
bercer, Adez Tirautwea, John Deal;

No. 7 - Joha Bainbridge, David Mann,
genjamin Stengle; N¢. 38 - John G.
Zrane, Hi}ltam Brinbridge, J.E.
Ciimenscn; Ne. 9 - Michael! Ritter,
Thomgs Burrougas, P.R., MC Duffie;

Mo. 10 - R. G, Smith, Thomas M.Crane,
J. Manee,

y¥n
Ga
Jo
Jo

11 - Skilman Doughty,
Abraham T. Covert, William H. Ayers;
Joint districts; No. 9 - Thomas
Mersh, Daniel Hart, Henry Hunt; No.
1T - Jacob H. Ogden, John G, Xing,
damas Biain; No. 12 - Alexander Carr,
John Ccral,, John T. Sample; No.i4 -

Also io.
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iery, Joseph C. Bachman;
Garret Van Sickle,
F. Lerch.

Stephen
No. 15
Benjamin

B

During that period of time,
teachers were hired for a winter
or a summey term. Men usually
worked the winter shift because
of thie difficulty of getting
to the school in inclemen
vweather. Some of the hardier
young ladies tackled the winter
term.

The teachers during the 1855-
1856 school term in Varick were:
No. 1 - Diedrich Willers, Jr.,
Mary Ogden; MNo. 2 - S*tephen
Crane, Caroline Sherwood:; No. 3 -
Isaac P. Roberts, Mary A. Wood-
worth; No. 4 - James Facer, Emma
T. Heoodworth; No. 5 - A.H. Bain-
oridge, Matilda M. Sutton: No. 6
- John A. Broadhead, Mary or Maria
F. Burlew; No. 7 - Mariette Sutton
Augusta Bodiie; No. 8 - Ebenezer
Gardner, Hannah McKnicht; No.9 -
Darwin C. Smaliey, C.M. Burlew:
No. 10 - Harrison Hazen, Louise
L. Barns and Sarzh Allen; No. 11 -
Hannah Mc Knight, Henriette Lisk;

At the join schools the
teachers were N0.9 - Phebe Kinne;
Ne. 11 - E.D, Hawes:; No. 12 -

John Byrum; MNo.l4 - William Hogan:
and Nc. 15 - John R. Stone.

Diedrich Willers was the last
town superintendent of schools for
Varick. On April 12, 1856, the
Legislaoture of the State of New
York passed an actwhich required
board of supervisors with but one
assembly district to elect by
ballot, an officer who would be
called a School Commissioner. He
would remain in Office until 1858
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when a commissioner would be elect-

ed by the people. Simeon Holton
was the first commissioner app-
ointed by the Board of Supervisors
He was from Seneca Falls.

¥k ok ok k% ko k k %k k k * * * *

THE BUSY BEE
and
THE SKIPPER

Today, the pleasure boats on Seneca and
Cayugs Lakes and on the New York
State Barge Canal continue the heri-
tage started when the first pioneers
settled and passed through the area.
And before thet time, it is certain
that the Indians who lived hera, also
used the lakes to ply their canoes
from one end o7 the lake to the other.

Beycnd the southern end of Seneca
Lake there were deep ravines to cross
when ane traveled by land. There was
a swamp at the northen end of the
lake but it was passable. Over 5,000
men crossed and re-crossed this
swamp during the Sullivan-Clinten
Campeign.

There were also ravines at the south-
ern end of Cayuga Lake.The swamp at
the northern end of the lake extended
severz! miies beyond the lake. There
were only rarrow footpaths where one _
could go threugh until one went be-
yond the swamp.It must have been diff>
icult for Peter Gansvoort and the
soldizrs who yreturnad to Albany by
that route. This was the route they
took To return with the bhaggage
that woulé not be needed while the
rest uy tag army returned alecng tha
lakes, south to Newtown (Elmira).

When John Harris and James Benneit
arrived in the area about 1788, they
saw theneed for & ferry and soon wer
providing a much nesded service.
Later there were other ferries on
Cayuga anc¢ Seneca Lakes, but the fame
of the Harris-Bennett ferry has con-
tinued throughout all the related
history o7 the county.

Their creft was about the size of
& rowboat. The early boats were pro-
pellad by sail and with paddle wheeal. .
PTOpzbly when all else failed, man
power with the aid of oars was also

used. i ‘;‘
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In a five-year period, froml80I
to 1806, about 330 boats passed
through portagz at Seneca Falls,
then called Mynderse Mills. Job
smith, Lawrence Van Cleef, and
later, others, were in the bus-
iness of transporting the boats
around the falls. No names have
been preserved of those who did
this at Waterloo, bu*t that area
also had a falls to by-pass

tn Mynderse Mills, the boats
had to be carried about a mile and
the owners were charged six
shilling a boat. As the crafts
became larger, the price went up
because the uvork had to bhe done
with a team of horses. When the
Cayuga and Seneca Canal was
completed about 1813, this type of
work was no longer necessary.

Boat yards were established
along the canal &nd along the
lakes. The "Miller", a boat which
was usad on the Erie Canal, was
puilt at Seneca Falls in 1816.

The first sioon on Seneca Lake
was the "Alexander™, built at
a cost of $2,304 and launched in
1796. The first steamboat on
Seneca Lake sailed in 1828,
according to some histories
but thare wers beats on bcth of
the lakes, earlier than that date.
ih2 Gocdwins epplied for a ferry
Iicense as early as 1811,

Fcr over one hundred years,
crafts of varied sizes, traveled
up and down, over and across
Seneca and Cayuga Lakes, trans-
porting tourists to all the
“Ports of cali" along the lakes.
Some of these even picked up
passengers in Waterloo and Seneca
Falls for a pleasant journey to
Watkins or Ithaca or Kings Ferry.

The siippers of these vessels
made their cccupation a lifetime
calling and remained at their job
for many years.

The most notable of these in Senecza
County was Capt. James Voorhees
Quick of Kidders. He was born Aug. 5,
1855 at Lodi, son of Heary Y. and
Mary Traphagen Quick. Henry was als>
a ferryman . He was born in Seneca
County accurding to the 1880 census
and was listed as a ferryman in the
1870 census. His son, James was 13
2t that time and probably was already
gainingvaluable experience by working
with his father on the becats.

A ferry license was granted to
Quick on April 21, 1€86. Whether
this was his first license is
not known but this one gave him per-
mission to travel from the end of the
turnpike rcad at what is known as
King Ferry to , or near the dock of
Myron R. Cole at Kidders. It was
slightly mere than two miles between
the two locations. The fee was 25
cents per person; 75 cents for a man
and a horse; $1 for a team and wagon.

The "Busy Bee" was 67 Teszi over all
and was built by James Beanett of
Sheldrake, no reiaticn to the Bennett
of Harris-Bennett fame. The boat had
four-foot gunwales and a 17 foct beam.
It was equipped with either sail or
steam. In the early years, 2 horss
went aleong on the beat. It was train-
ed tc walk a trezdmill as an extir
yQurCe G. power if and when the wint
failed. '

The rudcor was a eavy c=tachable
paddie eguipped with chains to hold
the beat on a straight coursa in
case the skipper had o leave the
wheel.

The Busy Bee made regular trips
every day to meet the trains and to
carry mail. In addition it was used
in countless excursion and pleasure
trips. The ferry could be signaled
from either side through the use of
a large board, nailed in a certain
spot where Quick could see it in any
weathar. The board also saved Quick
from me<ing unnecessary trips across
the laka. A white board meant the
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Jennie Acker

Lucy Archer

Rose Arden

Nellie E. Bradley
Mary Boorom

i‘able Brown
Malinda Blauvelt
Ferdelia Broas
Mary Bates

#Martha Bond

Anna Burdick

Cora Beach

Nellie Boorom
Helen Brooks
Jennie Burr

Mary L. Bradley
Frances Bullivant
Frankie Ball
Laura Blauvelt
Blanche Briggs
Carrie F. Boorom
Anna Boorom

Clara G. Beach
Sarah Boorom

Cora A. Briggs
Lottie Bement
Anna Bennett
tlsie Babcock
Ruby Cele
Jeannette Chamdler
Dora Crane '
Maude L. Conover
Cornie Curtis’
Antionette Covert
Mary C. Cole
Frances M. Citmars
Merie A. Daily
iartha Denison
Alice Dowars
Florence Dawson
Mary Dickerson
Mellie F. Ditmars
Florence Dawson
Susan Denison
Emma Dennis
Ursula Deniston
Helen Dowdle
Hattie Dill

Susan Dimmick
Lucille Dawson
Bertha Dimmick
Mary Dowdle
Hattie Darling .
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WOMEN VOTERS IN COVERT 1918

Mary Arden

Laura Allen

Jane Auten

Mary E. Bassette
Mina Bradley
Helen Bennett
Pearl Blauvelt
Ethel Bennestt
Mary G. Bates
Lillie Billings
Stella Burdick
Ada Bennett
Jennie Blauvelt
Jerusha Bennett
Fannie T. Bloomer
Maude Boorom
Etta Birney
Grace Batty

Edla Briggs
Minnie Barnes
Alice B. Bradley
Margaret Bzssette
Leah Blauvelt
Sarah C. Bradley
Kate Birney
Charlotte Bergen
Elmira Bainbridge
Ina Burroughs
8essia Conover
Helen Conde

Mina Cunningham
Kaoka Campbell
Ella Jd. Cele
Jennie Cole

Cora Congdon
Maud Dawson
Adelia Dzlnng
Clara Ditmars
Mary E. Downes
Pear! Dickerson
Maud Ooolittle
Estelle Dickerson
Laura Delong
Anna Dunn
Augusta Drake
Ida L. Dean

Ella Detro

Alida Dawson
Maggie Donnelly
Theane Davenport
gmma D=zmun

Anna Dickerson
Anna Dickerson

Eva illen
Margaret Ashlin
Hannah Austin
Susanra Bogart
Cora Bradley
Zobidia 6. Boyer
Mary Stark Boorom
Sarah J. Brown
Yatis Batty
Mellie Blauvelt
Myrtle Briggs
Mollie Bills

[da Burch

Carrie Bloomer
Winifreg Blain
Anna Brokaw
Isabell Beckley
Hattie Bryant
£lla Burchard
Agnes Bassette
Nellie D. Bradley
Caroiine Bennett
Elizabeth Burr
Jane Srown

Amy Baardman
Bertha Budman
£ffis Bracken

Anna Clawsaon
Mable W, Campbell
Mary D. Covert
Cora M. Cole
Louise Cole

Mary B. Conde

Sarah Jawson
Elle LDenpsey
Delpha Darrow
Jennie Doolittle
Emma Dewitt
Vercnica Donnelly
Cora Dawson
Minrie Durling
Marion E. Darrow
Louisa Donnelly
Julia Donnelly
Hattie Deniston
Beatrice Daily
Martha Dempsey
Janz Dowdle
Mildred Dawson
Elizabeth Demund
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Jennie Crise
Julia Covert

0la Conover

Ida Covert

Eliza Campbell
Lettie Conover
Janette Covert
Grace Elliott
Lena Emmons
Bessie Eldred
Elinor Edkins
Margaret Farrell
Viva Farlin
Ethel Finch
Mabel E. Fausette
Carrie Flagg

Ida M. Frost
Helen French
Anna Finch

Jane Grant

Enola German
Mary Goltry
Maggie Gordinear
Brientha Ganoung
Grace Grant
Jennie C. Green
Ida Goodwin
Julia Green
Martha Horning
Lena Hiltbrand
Mary Hamilton
Ella Holford
Stella Harris
Susan Howland
Susan Hall

Anna Hancy

Hulda Howell
Ella Howell

Emma Horton
Elizabeth Howland
Jesse Hause
Nanch Hause
Elizabeth Holton
Martha Hall
Bertha Harmon
Anna Hausner
Jennie Ike
Lizzie Johnston
Laura Johnston
Anna Jeffrey
Rebacca E, King
Mary Kellogg
Mame Keady
Katherine King
Isabelle Kerns
rlorence King

Ida Clarkson
Louise Case
Hattie Case
Elizabeth Church
Mable B. Case
Frances W. Covert

Mary M. Ely

Sarah Elliott
Maude Ellis

Ina Eastman
Esther Fowler
Catherine Flagg
Alice Fitzgerald
Carrie Foster
Lucy Folwell

Cora B. Fowler
Mary E. Freestone
Bertha A. Frost
Sidney Griswold
Hannah Gould
Bertha Griswold
Nettie Garman
Margaret Griswold
Emma German
Harriet Ganoung
Satie Gardner

Jennie Hunt
Myrtle Hayward
Julia Hunt
Bertha Hayt/Hoyt
Anna M. Handlen
Hannah Harvey
Grace Hunt

Ruth Harvey
Malinda Holton
Carrie Hagerman
Grace Hansner
Estella Harvey
Gertrude Hand
Hazel Hamilton
Mary N. Hunt
Grace Hess
Arsula Hilliard

Lena Johnson
Elizabeth Jefferds

Hattie King

Ella King

Maggie King
Josephine Knight
Marguerite Kinsley
Ann Eliza King

Anne W. Case
Luella Cole
Satie Creque
Hattie Clapp
Florence Clawson
Elizabeth Compton

Ada Pearl Edkins
Adella Evenden
Mary H. Elenburg
Mary Ellison
Hermione Ferris
Clara Farrell
Mary Farrell
Mary C. Frost
Jennie Frost
Cora Fausette
Rose Fulkerson

Frances Griswold
Elizabeth Gould
Edna F. Godfrey
Neilie Ganoung
Grace Gardner
Lela Green

Cola Grove
Emeline Grove

Calvina Hewlett
Carrie Hall
Anna Haskin
Hila Horton

Ida L. House
Florence Houser
Eleanor House
Helen Hudson
Lizzie Hall
Blanche Hanchett
Ida Harvey
Minnie Hunt
Margaret Hand
Emma Hunt

Mary Hunt

Mary E. Hawks
Elva Higgs

Alice Jackson
Alice Johnson

Maud Knight
Essie Kennedy
Carrie M. King
Alice Kellogg
Vera King
Harriet Kellogg



Mary Kerns

gthel Kirley

May Lincoln
Agnes E. Lisk
Helen Lanning
Helen Lowe
Carrie Medlock
clora Milne

Anna Miller

Mila Miller

Mary Manning
Sarah Marsh
Jennie Mason
Saranh Maxon
Alice Mathews
Jennie Morse
Malie? Manning
Sarah Mason
Elida Medlock
Margaret Miles
Cora McKelvie
gatsey M¢ Coy
Anna Mc Elroy
faude Mc Coy
Sarah MNewkirk
Frances 0'Leary
Kathryn 0gden
Marie Osgood
Marion Pearson
Carcline W, Peterson
Edith Peterson
Sarah Purcell
Maude R. Peterson
Lorena Peterson
aud Pell

Anna Peterson
Henrietta Pipsser?
Aargaret Quinn
Satie Quinn
Maude Rappleye
Mary Rosbrook
Lucy Russell
Nellie Reason
Florence Robinson
tda Rappleye
Lillian Rice
Elizabeth Ryan
Anna A. Stilwell
Grace Sutton
Sertha Selover
Dorothy Stickane
Mellie Slaght
Mary Snyder

Erma Switzer
Ethel Sisson
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Cornelia Kerns

Alice Lester
Maria Lincoln
Maria Lisk
Katherine Lanning
Ella Medlock
Fannie B. Milne
May Mount
Idylinda Miller
Mary Minor
Harriet Murphy
Adeline Mason
Alice B. Miller
Bessie Minor
Katherine Miles
Bessie Miller
Frances C. Miller
Kathryn Marshall
LOttie McDuffie
Marguerite Mc Mahon
Jane Mc Mahon
Jane Mc Coy
Eleanor Mc Kelvie

Sarah 0'Connell
Elizabeth Oliver
Julia 0'Connell
Louise Patrick
Margarette Peterson
Bessie Palmer
Cora J. Palmer
Lucy E. Peterson
Lula Palmer
Salina Pearsall
Marisee Peterson
Maude Parker
Luella S. Quick
Anna Quinn
Samantha Rappleye
Mary Riley
Gertrude Ranklin
Martha Rappleye
Margaret Roach
Adeline Ritchie
Grace Reynolds

Alice C. Smith
Cara M. Smith
Nelsie A.Stevens
Lillian Sherwood
Elma Swick

Maria Slaght
Serepta Smzlley
Adelia Swart wood

Eliza Kennedy

Nellie Leonard
Carrie Lyons
Jdane Leonard

Vira Messenger
Mary Marcellus
Julia Miller
Marjorie Morehouse
Jeannette Medlock
Mary Mathews

Anna Miller

Emma Miller

Emma Miller

Esther Mead

Alice Mathers,II
Elizabeth Marshall
May Melville

Ellen McEvoy
Floran Mc Clallen
Florence Mc Kelvie
Edith Mc Coy

Edna Mc Clurn

Mary P. 0'Connell
Clarie 0'Connell

Edith X. Pearson
Sarah Percy
Nellie Purdy

Ada Preadmore
Carrie Peterson
Susie L. Parker
Olive Peterson
Alice Peterson

Maggie Quinn

Anna E. Ryno
Rachael Ryder
Florence Rappleye
Anna Riley

Rutn Rappleye
Sarah Riley
Katherien Roach

Eulalie Stout
Susan Smith
Elizabeth Stilwell
Anna Shipson

Lynn Stewart
Flossy Simmons
Edith STillwell
Hedley J. Smith
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Edna Stannard
Elizabeth Swartwood
Addie Sloat
Elizabeth Shepson
Veronica Stout
Margaret Simmens
Inez Slaght

Lena Severn
Jennie Sniffin
Etta Slaght
Berta Sears

Eva Stannard
Eliza Stout
Laura Stevart
Effie Swick
Regina Stivers
Sarah Switzer
Bertha Smalley
Eliza Taylor
Hattie Tunison
Martha Traphagen
Hattie Terry
Ellen Thomas
Stupania Tompkins
Hazel Torbert
Meble Tunison
Florence Updike
Minerva VYan Dusen
Annice Van Vleet
Nora Van Doren
Stella Yeeley
Louise Vinning
Hattie Vosburg
Linn C., Kilson
iarcha Wellen
Eva Wiggins

Mary E. Whitbeck
Carrie Wixon
rannie Williams
Mary Worden
rrederica Wilson
Erma Wickes
Chellie Wixom
Clara Wilson
Marie Wolverton
Lucy Wilcox
Sarah Wightman
Minnie Wiggins
Margaret Wiggins
Mary Watherston
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Jean Savercoll
Elizabeth Smith
Sarah Sniffen
Harriet Starrett
Lula Shepson
Hattie Seseley
Sarah Sniffen
Esther Slaght
Myra Strong

Dora Smith

Normez Swartwood
Ella Sumner
Edith Slagnht
Lena Stackhouse
Bertha Seibert
Cora Shank

Eva Smith

Fannie Saylor
Martha Tailby
Ann Tunisan
Stella Tunison
Myra Torbert
Jane Travers
Sarah Thompson
Diana Tilyer
Cordelia Tunison
Minnie Usher
Martha Vell Monte
Margaret Van Liew
Kate Van Doren
Jennie Yan Doren
Gussie Voshurgh?

Laura Whightman
Anna M. Wilkins
Elizabeth WElton
Mae Wixon

Ellen Wheeler
Cora Watherston
Lucy Wixom
Phoebe Weatherstone
Minerva Wiggins
Augusta Weaden
Maggie Wixom
Hattie wellen
Dora Wilcox
Nancy Ward
Marietta Waugh
Mary J. Warne
Ella Wykoff

tula B. Smith
Carrie Schmidt
Sarah Stout
Mildred Stearns
Anna Slaght
Maude Shrodel
Ida Switzer
Inez Sniffin
gdith Selover
Nettie Schrier
Mary Stevens
Sarah Sherwood
Clara Starrett
Katherine Stout
Mary Stafford
Anna M. Smith
Helen J. Slaght
Alberta Starr
Hottie N. Teed
Lizzie Townsend
Margaret Taylor
Delphine Tunison
Yiola Tompkins
Lena Terrybury
Hermia A.Taylor

Phoebe Van Court
Alice Van Orman
Margaret Van Kirk
Hinnie Van Court
Anna Veshurgh

Bertha Wellen
Minnie Yhite

Jane Wickes
Florence T. Wolverton
Eva H. Marne
Carrie Wilcox
Minnie B. Ward
Maggie Ward
Katherine Wiggins
Elizabeth Wheeler
Amelia Wheealer
Mary M. Whightman
Elizabeth Whitaker
Helen Wikoff
Cynthia West

Maria Wikoff
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THE BUSINESS GROWTH
of
SENECA COUNTY

The early growth of Seneca County
is hest shown in the published
gazeteers. The first, published by
Horatio Gates Spafford in 1813,
used information collected through
the 1810 census. At that time,
Seneca had been & county for only
six years. The first white people
had moved into the region about 20
years before.

As it has been noted before,
Seneca County at that time extended,
south to include the townships of
Ulysses and Hector, north to Lake
Ontario.

Industry was pretty auch a family
business, but these wers plentiful
and provided many of the products
needed by the people of the area.

Fayetta had a population of 1,754
people, 43 of these wers slaves.
The town had two grain mill, four
saw mills; a carding mechine and
two distilleries. There were 63
Family looms which produced 15,399
yards of cloth in 1810. There were
seven schools.

Junius at that times included
the present towns of Waterloo,
Seneca Falls, Tyre, Junius, Galen,
Savannah, Butler and Reose. It had
one merchant mill (probably Wilhe-
mus Mynder's), two grain mills,
Tive or six saw mills, a Tulling
mill; two distilleries and two
carding machines. There were 71
family looms which produced 20,274
yards of Cloth. West CAyuga or
Bridgeport had 16 or 17 houses;
Mynderse Mills or Seneca Falls
had 15 houses. The population
for Junius was 2,251.

Ovid, then included the towns of
Ovid, Lodi and Covert. It had six
grain mills; seven saw mills;: three
fulling mills; two carding machines

Also nine distlleries, four pot-ash
works and three tanners. There were
167 looms and 56,447 yards of cloth
were produced in 1810. The town of
Ovid had the most, inhabitants, 4,535
but the village was so small that no
count of houses was given. It also
had two ferries; one on Cayuguand one
on Seneca Lake.

Romulus with a population of 2,766
nad nine or 10 school houses. There
were 113 family looms, Three villages
were identified: Lancaster, now
Willard; Plymouth and Apple Town, now
both gone. In addition to the regular
mills: three grain, seven saw, three
tanners and five pot ash works, it
was noted that the six distilleries
for grain and fruit spirits had made
12,730 gallons in the year. There
were 102 mechanics in the town, who
were employed at 11 different trades.
Some of the families were involved in
making maple sugar; 2,000 pounds were
made in one season according to the
gazeteer.

The other towns in the county at
that time were: Hector, Wolcott and
Ulysses. Galen was formed in 1812
before the gazetear was printed but
since the editor usad the 1810 census
for a guide, its population schedule
was still included with Junius. At
that Time Wolcott went over to
Cavuga County but it was returned to
Wayne County when that county was

Organizad. At the time the gazeteer
was printed, Ithaca had only about
40 houses.

Horatio Spafford published a
second gazeteer in 1823. The book had
over 600 pages. That year 34 town

were added and two counties: HWayne
and Yates.
Covert had been erected in 1817

from the southern half of Ovid and
annexed to Tompkins County when it
was formed. In 1819, it was returned
to Seneca.

Its population totaled 3,459 of
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whom 779 were farme: , 141 mach-
anics and seven in trade. There
were Tivs fcre1zne 5; seven fTrez

blacks end eight slcvas. The toun
had 15 schoals, six grist mills,
six saw mills, two fuliing nills,

tWe carding machines, two fanneries
and two Gisitillories

Tayette had : populetion o7
2,359 of whor, E0h ware Taruers,
139 mechanics and tuo in trage.
Tiiere wara five Torzignsrs, 63
froe blacks enad 11 slaves. The town
had five gris: WL-lS, eight saw
mills, one oil mill, three fulling
mills, seven carding machines,
one asnhery and Tive distilleries.

In referring to the one viilage
in Fayette, Sparford noted it was
called Scauvz or Scawas or Scawyace.
He wrote, "Ths nama is probably of
German origin, and was also applied

to _both sides of thie river. Who
wiil tell me the meaning of this
name and how to write it?"

A
Junius was describead as an

“spulent and populons founship"
senaca, or Seneca Falls VYillage

nad about 437 houses, 2 church and
rparsonage, two largs marchant mills,
ar ¢il mill, a vuliing mill, saw
mill, tannary, distilliery, three

stores, two innps and ahout 2C0
inhabitants.

Waterloo rhad twe moerchaent mills,
cWwo saw miils, zn o:l mill, twe
fuliing milis, a trip hawm*r. an
2ir furnace, a distillery, seven
stores, six inns. ons physician,
six lawyers, abnut 80 houses and
500 inhabitentes.

Eridgeport or wes®t Cayuga, had
30 houses, 1 toll house, cone store
four taverns and avscut 150 inhab-
itants. Mo menticn was made of
Kingdonm.

The whole town of Junius had a
population of 5,113 of which
1,050 ware farrers, 28 In commerce
232 in manutactiure 32 free blacks

and 25 slaves. There were 25 school-
houses throughout tne town.

The village of Ovid had a church,
the court house and jail, a printing
nffice. four stores, two inns and
about 50 houses. Interlaken or Farmer
at that time was partly in Covert and
partly in Ovid. It had 20 houses, two
stores, a Baptist and Dutch Reformed
church. Of the 2,654 pecople in the
town, 495 ware farmers, 177 mechanics,
18 traders, eight slaves. The town
had five grist mills, five saw mills
five distilleries and one ashery.

Romulus had a population of 3,698
of whom 850 were farmers, 158
mechanics, four traders. There were
four foreigners, 55 free blacks and
27 slaves. The slaves must have been
freed the next few years for none
were recorded in the 1830 census.

In 1823, Seneca County had about
85,000 acres of cleared land. In
1850, over 128,000 acres were cleared.
Agriculture was the prime business
put other businesses were now more
varied.

A listing of the businesses for
each town in the county in 1850
shovwed there was one baker in Seneca
Falls and one in Waterloo. All the
towns =2zcept Waterloo had blacksmiths
and 75 men were employed at that
trade.

Seneca Falls and Waterloo both had
two blind and sash makers with a
total of 15 employes. Covert had a.
brush maker at which five worked
full time.

Ninetee Nman were working as cab-
inet makers throughout the county,
&l as carriage makers and 23 as
coopers. Waterloo had a chairmaker
with two employes and a cotton
factory with 48 full-time workers.

T#0 men in Covert made grain crad-
les; one man in Seneca Falls made
cultivator teeth. There was also &
fork and hoe factory in Seneca

58



: Fails bHu? fic giira
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l¥ ®Wat zna2ca Falls
gisiil 850. The
e 5l t hive bizr
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loo, on ctably some of
listed Fayetiz were in
Watarle ich was noted
grist 18
t had 2 limz %iln, & plaster
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could have been for their grand
dparents and great-grandparents.

There were two types of trailers
in the park, one style was ex-
nandable. Thay were completely
furnished sxcept for dishes and
bed liren.

vent was $3.50 and $7.50 a week
23 ohis included electricity and
ater. The individual trailers

«1d ot rave water but it was piped
tarcughout-the area.

There were shower and toilet
facilities in separate buildings.
There were two laundries with
washers, hot water and irons.

Every day was wash day at the park.

During the time the two Romulus
projects were being built, there
were 200 families with about 700
persons at the f{railer cemp. The
administraticn building was used
for bingco and dances. A nurse was
at the site, her services provided
by the state.

Among the tenants, the majority
of the residents wvere from New
York City and Long Island, but
& survey showed that 11 states
wer2 representad by the peoplz and
come ¢7 them came from as far as
Texas and Florida. When the work
w3c completed, evervone left and
the %trailars were removed. The
éarea once again became the county
fairground. The only years there
iidas been no fair was during this
period. The electric lines and
vater pipes were laid underground
and are still there.

(A History of seneca County has
been published which is about
places such as the ordnance depot
and Sampson Naval Base. Written

cy Hild Watrous, it is available
through "Heart eof the Lakes
Publishing", Intarlaken, NY

14847)

PIONEERS AWD OThER CITIZENS
of SENECA COUNTY

ﬁ’;‘ / P d
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Pierre A. Barker was an zttorney
in Waterloo. He came to Waterloo
about 1819 znd oroboniy seitled on
the east ang of the villaga on lot
97, betweer the villace and the
Kingdom. He purchased other property
but these were probebly for specula-
tion. In 1824 with Chauncey S.
Clark he bought 400 acres of Junius
43 for $2,000 and zn earlier deed
shcwed he bought 100 acres, probably
the State 100 of Romulus 30 for

$3,000 in 1817.
He was 2 school inspector in Fay-
ette in 1810. He only appeared in

the 1820 census, but there are many
old cocuments with his signeture.

His wife's name was Ann. According
to the census they had one son and
four daughte or st ieast Tour
females were i1n the househald. Poss-
ibly one was a servant. Their only
son William Henry, died in 1823 at
the age of 2ight and is Suried in
Water!lao.

In 1222 h2 was appointed collector
of Tthe Por:t of Buffalo by Presidenc
Andrew Jzcikson. NHo other information
is availahie regarding Barker and
his family.

*‘.‘rt\***?’r‘f‘:.“:**w****‘.‘c

DR. CLAURIUS €. COAN was borr in
West Stockbridge, Berkshire Co.
Mass., March 1, 1794. When he was
four years old his family moved %o
Bloomfield, Ontario County, one of
the very early settlers.

He studied medicine in Canandaigua
under Or. Samuel Dungan. He had
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receivey his early stucation at He served as trustee for many years.
the Canandaigua ncadeny. He served ;
2or a short tine at yjg3ara Falls in He and his wife had eight children:
the War of 1312, then conpleted seven of whom grew to maturity.
his medical studies 2T the Univ-
ersity of pennsylvania under None of his sons were named
genjamin Rill, Claudius, although son William

named his son for his grandfather,

No matter - one need pnly check
through the census records of Lodi.
ovid and Hector to realize how much

he was respected. There were dozens

of boys who received the name
Claudius C., including Claudius C.
wheeler, Claudius C. Fenton and
Claudius C. Walker, whom he rememberec
in his will.

He practiced medicine in Lodi for
65 years. He continued to practice
until his dezth. He died Feb. 28,
1882. Sarah M. Coan died March 1, the
next day. They are buried in Union
Cemetery in Ovid.

0 ..

ok, M. D The first Dey tc com %o America
' T was Teunis Dey who came from Holland.
Ha lived in New York City and own:d
land on Broadway, His son Dirck-or

on July 26, 1217, ne married Richard was baptized in 1687. Dirck

serah Folwell, daughter of William moved to New Jersey, probably in

. Folwell of Romulus. They met the Bergen County Area. His son

“trough Dr. Dungan who was her Teunis was the fatner pf Pater.

uncle. Ha2 began his practice the

same year at Lodi. In 1841 he re- Teunis who lived at Preakness was

ceived an honorary dagree of a colonel cf the Berger County

doctor of medicine from the Militia.

Regents of the Univarsity of New

York on the recommendation of the Several of nis sans settled ip

State Medical Society. Seneca County:Dr. Philip, Benjamin,

David and Peter. John, another son

_ln.1830 he was appointed super- settled in Ontario o Pierson, S¢n

v150r_of the county poaor and was of Richard and grandson of Teunis

one .of the first trustees of the also settled in Seneca County.

Saneca County Alms Heuse. His )

son-in-1iaw, Or. Anthony Schuyler Benjamin was here beforse 180G and

was alco one of the Fi-st trustees. was involved in the sale of many ¢V
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parcels of the military lots. His
name does not always appear as
grantee but he was involved in the
salz of many of the lots. Some
were granted to him by the Cayuga
Commission, according to the early
deeds. Itis possible that he might
nave served as a agent in selling
these lots.

genjamin, Philip and David lived
ir what is now Varick: Peter
lived in Fayette for the greatest
share of his life in this area.
He died in Seneca Falls, Sept. 11,
1634, at 79, according to the
Trinity Church records.

The brothers and their families
came to Sensca County between 1802
and i805. In 1805, Peter Dey bough
211 acres of Romulus 36, in the
north half of the lot. In 1806, he
purchased an addition al 100 acres
of -the same lot.

In 1808 he was appointed comm-
issioner of highways. On Nov. 9,
1818, Peter Dey, manumitted a
black map named
Ha noted he was under 45 years of
eg? and able to take care of him-
self.

ihhard the older brother was
aptain in the Revolutionary War
service of both Peter and

id ara mentioned in Peter's
ion record. Quite possibly
others were alsc in service.

y Peter applied for & pension.

=— > 3 h.ti} "3 e

n

The document was recorded in

Sene ca County on Feb. 5, 1834,
just five months before he died.
ceter Dey's pension number was S
for Suryvivor 15078. Most of the
survivar records were quite brief.
If a record of a man's service was
still availabe, he had no problem
in gettirg a pension.

Sometimes a man went into great
detail in describing his service.
Yhen this type of information is
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Thomas Van Wagener.

available these contemporary
records bring to life the events of
long ago. Such is the case with the
pension record of Petar Dey.

He enlisted Aug. 22, 1776
Saddle River, where he lived

at
in

{

Bergen County, New Jersey and marched

to Elizabethtown Point. 4e remained
there 10 or 15 cdays.

ed to Bergen HaighIs.
one month which was tha

that tour.

Fa2nained
length of

He said, "My father Teunis Dey
was colonel of the whole regiment
and on this tour, part of the time
he was absent at
of tne legislature. He went to give
his vote for William Livingstone,
for Governor. This was the first
time that Livingstone was elected
and the first time any governor was

then wzis order-
thers

Trenton as a member

elected by the people of New Jersey."

In April 177 Dey volunteers again
as a private with a company of
Rangers under Capt. Peter Fell and
Lt. Yost Zebrisky. This company
covered all
County. They marched to Hobeken,
went several times to Fort Lee and
other places, protecting the county
from the threats of the Tories.

He noted that they nad no particuler
i company officers

LR - | - -
field sfTicers, the

were commissioned or appointad by
his father.

ttle with the
John

He noted, "Had &bz
raefugees at Peramus in Mav.

the lower part of Bergen

Barton was commander of the refucees.

They surrounded Mrs. Hopper's house
and fired upon one enother. Qur
company lay socme way off and we
theniattacked them and drove thenm
of £

tn August or September 1777 he

served as sergeant and was on scnut;
in several

ing parties. He continued
tours of one month or more until

October 1779 when the whole regiment

under Capt. John Mead and Colonel
Dey went on a long alarm. Four
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‘egiments of militia teook part.

fe said, "The enemy had crossed a
iarty over at Hoboken under Corn-
tallis and General Grey. They were
iarching up the river, plundering
ind foraging. There were no Ccn-
.inental troops near. A regiment

)f horse under Lt. Col. Bayler

tas nine or ten miles off and
jaylor moved his troops without
:oisulting the officers of our
‘egiments. Thare weas i1l will
ixisting between Bayler's Corps and
wr Militia. My father had been
1sked by the sheriff of Bergen
iounty to serve civil process

japers on Baylor's quartermaster
ind other officers for having taken
;itizen's cattle by force. Bayior's
troop went to a barn in old Tappan.
deneral Gray was able to get
Jetween our regimentis and Bayvlor's
luring the pight and murdered
1lmost all of them whilsz they were
isleep.”

In May 1780 while serving under
insign Abraham Post, he was stat-
toned at Hackensack as a guard.
fhis time with 18 others he vol-
inteers under Capt. Thomas Blaach
6 patrol ir the neighborhood of
1 Block house built by the Tories
in the edge of the Hudson river.

v formidable force was wapt there
:0 get wood out of the Bergen woods
‘or the enemy at New York City.

Dey pointad out, "The Tories at
:his blockhouse had commiited 2
jreat many murders in Bargen. QOne
)f the men in particular, name of
John Berry and called "Jdack the
tegular” had committed i3 murders
.n the county, one a man of 80
1amed Allen."

Gn Juns 3, 1780, Dey, cut on
ratrol with Capt. Blanch, came upon
Jack the Regular abcut two miles
‘rom the blockhouse. They took two
irisoners and killed Jack and two
1ithers., He said, "We carried the
ody of Jack to Hackensack to show
-he people that their dangerous
memy was no more."

iwo months after this, Gen. Anthony
Wayne attacked this sams blockhouse
with the Continentals and was defeated.
He lost 82 kilied and wounded out of
Colonel Jackson' regiment of Pennsy-
ivania troops.

Dey continued with his report,

"In July 1780, General Washington
made his headguartars at my father's
flouse 7Tor Tour weeks. His private
secretary was Benjamin Harrison. His
aides were: Alexander Hamilton, Davidg
Humphrey, Richard Xedder and Tench
Tillman. Whils he was at our houssz
that time, William Colefax was comm-
ander of the lifeguard, Major Caleb
Gibbs was absent. A few days after
Major Andre was hung, Washington came
back and took up his quarters again
at out house and stayed seven weeks.
He left the houss on Nov. 27, 1780."

This house was at Preakness, N.J.

In April 1782, the whcle company
was detached under his father and
marched to Fort Lee to drive away the
refugees who were building the old
Fert Lee for a harbour. Their old
blockhouse in Bergen woods had been
burnt the yesar befcrs,

He sald,"We were in a battle with
the enamy at the fort. We clezred
them cut and they never attempted
t0 narbour &gain along the west side
¢t the Hudsown river in Bergen County."

de had lived in Fayette since
180! and in the town of Seneca Falls
fo- the lasZ two years. David Dey,
his brother lived in VYarick and was
witness to his sarvica. They served
togather part of the time. David
was in the latter part of the war
wher he reached 16.

The Rev. Aaron D. Lane, Presby-
terian minister in Waterloo, was
witness for his character. The
judges were: Jacob L. Larzelerg,
dames DaMott, James Seely and Jesse
Clark. Seba Murphy was clerk.
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ANTHONY VARACALLI

Although not a pioneer, Antonic
Varacalli definitely deserves a
place in the historical files of
Seneca County. Born in Italy,
Anthony and his father ODominick
had come to the Unitad States
and Seneca Falls, about 1919,
His mother and two sisters re-
mained in Italy. The oldest
sister and her husband had been
killed in the war. One son sur-
vived who lived with his grand-
mother.

Anthony and Dominick hoped to
find work and save money to

bring the rest of the family to
the United States. The dream

was shattered when tragedy struck.
One day when Anthony was walking
in the vicinity of the bridge on
Bridge St. he heard someone
scream. He ran to the bank and saw
a8 young woman struggling in the
water. o

Without hesitation he jumped
into the canal to try to save the
young woman, although he could
not swim. He managed to get the
girl! to thebank.before he sank
into the water, and drowned.

Dominick Cafora of cast River Rd.
recalled the incident vividly al-
though it happened more thean 60 yeetﬁ
ago. At the time he was a young mazn ™
working for the town of Seneca Falls.
Working with him was Domianick
Varacaili, father »of Anthony. They
were cleéering up along the highvay
near the Seneca Falls Machine Co.,
when 2 call came from the village
to say that Varacalli was needed.¥nen
he reached the bridge he was notified
his son had drowned.

0n June 21, 192! there was a
benefit for Tony. A fund had been
started to provide a memorial. A
plague was made and is now set into
the side of the Bridge Street pricge.,

The incident of the memorial has
been recently published in the ,
newspapers. But as a famous radio :
commentator would say, "Now nere !
is the rest of the story." !

When the fund was sterted it was |
hoped that more could be .raised
through the Carnegie Hero Fund, ;
enough to bring the family from Italyl
which had been Anthony's plan Trom
the beginning.

The Carnegie Fund did send a3 medal
but no mecrey, sz the Seneca Falls
Eiks tcck over the projact to reiss
money to bring Mrs. Varcalll, her
two daugnters anc g-andson to Seneca
Falls. Th=2 Elks Clud was able to
raise $200 whicn was not gquite
enough to bring them all here.
Dominick Romeo, owner of a store an
Rumsey St. advenced the remaincer

amily could all come at the
same time.

When the noney arrived the family
went immediately to Haples where |
they would get aboard the ship. i
They were told by the American Const
that they must each nave $20 in cou-y
ition to the passage money or they
weuld not be able to leave Ellis
Island. They had less than $15 in ‘)
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_ Mrs. Varcalli recalled a man
in their village. He was a
wealthy importer. Twenty years
before she had taken care of

his son when his wife died. She
went to him with her problem.

He cheerfully provided the 1,700
lire needed in exchange for the
$100 in American money.

The family reacheac New York
City and were put on a train,
iiot being able to understand the
language they did not know hen
the conductor called out Seneca
Falls. Railroad employes neg-
lected to tell them when to get
off and they went all the way to
Niagara Falls.

Dominick VYarcalli waited all
day at the station for his fam-
ily, knowing they wers suppcsed
to arrive that day. Anxiety took
aver and he collapsed at 9 p.m.
Meantime, everything was straigh-
tened out at the other end and
the next train brought the fam-
ily back from the west. On
July 28, 1922, the family was
reunited for the first time in
15 years.
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HAROLD "PGP" CURRY, 70 of Seneca
ralls died March 19, 1987. Bur-
ial in St. Columkille. He was
born in Seneca Falls, 12/18/1916,
son of Frederick and Alice King.
He was a World War 11 , vetaran
of the US Army Air Cforps. He

was retired from the Ssneca Falls
pest office and was also a pro-
fessional musician, playing thz
piano for many vears at Belhurst
Castle in Geneva
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Mabal I. 8rederick 86, of

Saneca Falls, formerly Washington,
D.C died 3/22/1986. Burial was in

Arlington National Cemetery. Born in
Jamestown, R.I., May 14, 1900, dau-
ghter of Aaron and Augusta Johnson
Richardson. Mrs. Brcderock was a
veteran of World War I and served
with tha US Navy for three years.

She was hcnerably discharged as chief
yeoman. She was the widow of James W
8roderick who died 2/17/1861.
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AL3ERT F. LEONARD, 73, of Seneca
Falls died 3/21/1987. Born in Seneca
ralls, 3/5/1914, he was the son of
Edward and Eva Parks Lesnard. He was
a veteran of the US Navy in World
War ‘LI
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DOHALD PIERSON, SR. of town of
Waterloo died 3/31/1987, 69. Burial
in Oakx Lawn Cemetery, Phelps. He
was born in Yarick, 11/27/1817,the
son of £lden and Frances Roth. He was
a seaman first class in the US HNavy
and 3 World War II veteran.
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HAROLD N. KISE, 66, of town of
Tyre diad 4/11/1887, buried in
Springbrook cemetery. He was born in
Clyde, 6/6/1920, son of Nelson H.
and M>ble Rose. He was a 20-year
veteran o7 the US Army and US Air
Force. He served in World War II,
Korca and Vietnem. tl2 wes honorably
discharged in 1957.
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JOSEPH GIOQVANNINI, 868, ¢f Seneca
Falls died 4/29/1987. Born Senscea
Falls, 3/16/1901, the son of Antonio
and Jdennie 8aldassari. He was a vet-
eran of World War 1.
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